
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

January 04, 2022 at 5:30 PM  

Council Meeting Room, 101 North State Street, 
Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  January 3, 2022 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PERSONNEL 

MINUTES AND APPROVAL OF BILLS 

1. To approve the minutes from the Council personnel interview meeting held on December 7, 2021, the 

Committee meeting held on December 7, 2021 and the regular City Council meetings held on 

December 7, 2021 and December 21, 2021. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. To ratify the purchase of radios from Premier Wireless in the amount of $13,374.40 for the Abbeville 

Police Department 

2. To approve the quote from Techline in the amount of $8,934.81 for poles for stock. 

3. To approve payment of estimate for partial payment number 1 payable to Patriot Construction for the 

LaFitte Park Walking Trail project. 

4. To approve change order number 1 relative to the LaFitte Park Walking Trail project.   

5. To approve payment of estimate for partial payment #3 (final) payable to Glenn Lege Construction in 

the amount of $12,582.34 for the North and South Hollingsworth Drive and Cypress Street Milling and 

overlay. 

6. To approve change order #2 relative to the North and South Hollingsworth Drive and Cypress Street 

Milling and Overlay project. 

7. To approve a special event permit to hold the Vermilion Walk for Life on January 22, 2022 from 10:00 

AM to 1:00 PM. 

8. To authorize the lease purchase of a backhoe - Mayor Mark Piazza. 

9. To approve the quote from Preferred Electric, Inc. in the amount of $13,500.00 for bores for lighting at 

Roy Theriot Field and Ralph Sellers Field. 

10. To authorize advertisement for the bids for the 2021 LCDBG Sewer System Improvements project. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. None. 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND UPDATES 

1.        Engineers  

2.        Public Works Director 

3.        Parks and Recreation Director 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION 

1.        Council Members 

ADJOURN 

1



In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 

if you need special assistance, please contact 
Mayor Mark Piazza’s office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

2



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Council personnel interviews 

December 7, 2021 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for personnel interviews on December 7, 

2021 at 4:45 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North 

State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., and Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem    

 

Members Absent:  Councilwoman Roslyn White   

 

Also Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Jonathan Touchet, Police Lieutenant 

    Hunter Wagers 

    Jacob DuPont 

     

Mayor Piazza stated we are here to interview one candidate for the position of Police Officer and 

one candidate for the position of Firefighter.    

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to enter into 

executive session to conduct interviews with both candidates.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to reconvene 

the meeting from executive session.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza stated that during executive session they interviewed one candidate for Police 

Officer, Hunter Wagers, and one candidate for Firefighter, Jacob DuPont.   

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor  

3



 1 

City of Abbeville 

Committee Meeting  

December 7, 2021 

 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for a committee meeting on December 7 

2, 2021 at 5:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 

North State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White  

 

Members Absent: None 

 

Also Present: Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

 Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

 Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

 Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

 Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

 Steve Moosa, Accounting Consultant 

 Marilyn Mitchell 

     

Mayor Piazza stated we are here for a Finance Committee meeting chaired by Councilman 

Francis Touchet, Jr. and an Ordinance Committee chaired by Councilwoman Terry Broussard.  

 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public on any of the agenda items.  

There were none. 

 

Mayor Piazza stated that the first item on the agenda is a presentation of the proposed budget 

for 2022 by Mr. Steve Moosa.  The highlights from the budget for the year are that the City has 

a history of giving annual raises to employees on their anniversary date.  They will continue to 

receive a 2% annual increase.  That is in this budget.  The City has some debt obligations that 

are outstanding.  We recently issued a $3,000,000 debt obligation and we will be paying off a 

previous obligation early next year.  Overall, the debt service payments for the City will be 

$10,000 less going forward per month.  That is in the new budget.  The debt service payments 

are around $700,000 in principal payments and interest payments.  Mr. Moosa discussed the 

expenditures and revenues as found on page two of the budget.  There is a total of $11 million 

of operating expenses for the general fund.  It takes in $1.7 million of revenue between taxes 

and licenses so we have to bring in about $9 million as a transfer from the utility system fund.  

We do have a balanced budget for the general fund.  We also have a balanced budget for the 

special revenue funds.  On page 22, the debt service obligations are shown.  The budget plans 

for about 160 employees.  Mayor Piazza stated that we have a balanced budget.  Lonnie was 

able to meet with the Council individually.  He was hoping that the numbers would look a little 

better but we took a hit in our health insurance fund.  Steve stated that 2021 has been the highest 

cost as far as health insurance goes.  It was up 10% without having any increase in the 

premiums charged to the employees.  You are self-insured up to $75,000 for every claim.  That 

has put a strain on the cash flow.  The amount was up $500,000 so you were overbudget on 

that.  Mayor Piazza stated that we did reduce that number back to an average and we are 

hoping that the number will come back down.  Health insurance can swing a half of a million 

dollars in either direction in any given year.  We had the worst health insurance year that we 

have ever had.  On the positive side, we had the best sales tax year we have had.  Steve stated 

that is true and we kept it conservative again in 2022.  If the Utility System Revenues stay 

consistent, you should be fine.  Councilman Touchet stated that he wanted to continue the 

quarterly updates of the budget as in the past.  Mayor Piazza asked Steve to contact him 

regarding the monthly expenses charged so the schedule of services can be tweaked.  

Councilman Touchet stated that it would be a good idea to ask Lloyd to have a break down of 

our insurance expenses as it relates to unvaccinated COVID participants.  We will not have the 

same thing that happened last year happen this year.  We will not sit here and let our entire 

fund be used because people are ignorant and not wanting to get vaccinated.  We need those 

hard numbers for evidence.  Councilman Broussard stated that we can quantify that because it 

is a distinct increase because of that reason.  We already have those numbers from the broker 

and we should all be armed with that information in case we need to make any policy changes.  

Councilman Touchet stated that we can’t let our taxpayer’s dollars go to things like that.  We 

4



 2 

need to be good stewards of the money.  Councilwoman White stated that what happens to 

employee healthcare is completely in the hands of the employees.  It is your decision to get 

vaccinated or not but look what it is costing you and what ultimately it will cost you and your 

whole team.  We hope that our team will be more responsible and make the responsible choices.  

Mayor Piazza asked Steve if the ARPA funds are in the budget.  Steve stated yes as a capital 

outlay type.  As you spend the funds, they will be moved to capital projects.  Mayor Piazza 

stated this is a balanced budget which includes the annual 2% pay raise for all full-time 

employees.  They will receive that on their anniversary date.  We will continue to carefully 

monitor overtime.  The budget will be available at City Hall for the public to view. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to recommend 

to the City Council at their meeting scheduled for December 21, 2021 to approve the proposed 

2022 budget.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza asked Councilwoman Broussard to read the item for the Ordinance Committee 

meeting.  Councilwoman Broussard stated the item is the presentation of the reapportionment 

plan from the results of the 2020 census and to consider an ordinance to adopt the plan.  She 

asked, Ms. Janis Fabre, from the office of Sellers and Associates, Inc. to discuss the plan.  Ms. 

Fabre presented the proposed maps.  We have to do this every ten years.  Mayor Piazza stated 

that District B increased in population.  District A & D remained about the same.  District C 

has a decrease in numbers.  District A stays the same except for J. H. William’s Middle School 

plus one block.  The simplest thing was to move those 4 blocks because the districts have to 

remain contiguous to each other.  District A will lose 31 people.  District B gained so many 

that the percentage change was greater than 5%.  District C would gain 148 people and District 

B would lose 117 people.  This is a proposed ordinance that would be adopted in two weeks.  

We are required by law, according to the Secretary of State, to have this in his office by 

December 27, 2021.  According to the 2020 census our population dropped to 11,186.  At the 

2010 census the population was 12,257.  They did not go a very good job with the census.  Ms. 

Fabre stated that the census workers did go door to door but many people did not open their 

door.  Mayor Piazza stated that a lot of mayors were disgruntled with the numbers. The numbers 

are what they are and there isn’t much we can do but live with them for the next ten years.  Ms.   

Marilyn Mitchell stated that today they were supposed to receive an email from the SPLC 

regarding the redistricting.  The SPLC and the NAACP created a redistricting map too and 

they want to be a part of that process.  We want fair representation and they want to create two 

minority districts and make it a fifth district and get rid of the at large district.  Or we could 

have two minority districts and it is all in the letter that was sent.  Mr. Funderburk stated that 

everyone has received a copy of the letter.  Ms. Mitchell stated they want to be a part of the 

process before the vote.  Mayor Piazza stated that the ordinance is being introduced tonight 

and at the next City Council meeting there will be a public hearing.  Ms. Mitchell asked if the 

Southern Poverty Law Group could get in touch with the Ordinance Committee before.  Mayor 

Piazza asked if they didn’t want to come to the public hearing.  Ms. Mitchell stated that she 

would ask because she doesn’t know where they are out of.  The national from Washington D. 

C. contacted us.  Mayor Piazza stated that the letter stated they wanted public input.  That is 

what a public hearing is for and we are having a public hearing at the next City Council meeting 

for this ordinance.  Ms. Mitchell stated that she would tell her to be here for that.  Mr. 

Funderburk invited the Council members to read the letter from Southern Poverty Law Center 

in great detail and to get with him if they have any issues or questions.  Mayor Piazza added 

that before we have too much conversation and discussion and thought goes into this, one of 

the recommendations is about removing the Councilman at Large seat. The Councilman at 

Large seat is specific to our City charter.  Mr. Funderburk stated that we cannot do that on our 

own.  It could not be done by the end of this year.  If the Council were to choose to do that, we 

would have to go to the legislature next session.  Mayor Piazza stated that only the State can 

change our charter and it is specified in the charter that we have a Councilman at Large 

position.  Councilman Broussard added that the City of Abbeville was created under a special 

legislative charter.  That means that only the legislature can make changes to our charter and 

we cannot. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to 

recommend to the City Council at their next meeting scheduled for December 21, 2021 to adopt 

an ordinance to adopt the reapportionment plan from the results of the 2020 census.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

5



 3 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

6



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

December 7, 2021 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on December 7, 2021 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Brady Broussard, Jr., Terry 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White    

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also, Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Lieutenant Jonathan Touchet 

    Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

    Lee Schexnaider, Wastewater Treatment Plant Superintendent 

    Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Janis Fabre, Engineer 

    T. J. Savoy, Engineer 

    Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

    Ralph Hutchinson, retired Assistant Fire Chief 

    Byron Perry, retired Assistant Fire Chief 

    Tommy Picard, Park & Recreation Director, QSA  

    Bridget Levy, Parks & Recreation Board 

    Felicia Williams, Parks & Recreation Board 

    Homer Stelly, Director of Vermilion Parish Homeland Security & 

     Emergency Preparedness 

    Joey Boneski  

    Mike Hardy        

       

Mayor Piazza asked Mr. Joey Boneski to lead the assembly in prayer.  Mayor Piazza asked Mr. 

Mike Hardy to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve the 

probational appointment of Hunter Wagers to the position of Police Officer pending all post-hire 

assessments.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

probational appointment of Jacob DuPont to the position of Firefighter, pending all post-hire 

assessments.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza recognized Assistant Chief Ralph Hutchinson and Assistant Chief Byron Perry who 

recently retired from the Abbeville Fire Department.  All of our departments with the City of 

Abbeville are special but when you come from the Fire Department or the Police Department 

those are jobs where lives are put on the line.  Those are jobs where lives are being saved.  Those 

are jobs that require a lot of training, a lot of dedication and a lot of hours of work.  These two 

gentlemen have both achieved the rank of Assistant Fire Chief.  That is not an easy 

7



2 
 

accomplishment.  He has known both of these gentlemen his entire tenure on the City Council and 

as Mayor.  He worked very closely with both of these individuals and they are both very hard 

workers and are dedicated individuals.  Firemen work a 24-hour shift.  That means they go to 

work for a whole day and then they are off of work for two days.  It doesn’t matter if it is Christmas 

or Easter or the 4th of July or whatever day of the year it is, if that is your shift then that is your 

shift.  You are at the fire station all day for 24 hours.  You are not at home with your family.  Both 

of these employees were exemplary in their department and they were looked up to by their peers.  

We appreciate your work.  He presented each employee with a plaque.   

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

minutes from the Committee meeting held on November 2, 2021 and the regular City Council 

meetings held on November 2, 2021 and November 16, 2021.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to ratify bills paid 

in the month of November 2021.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Plaisance/White 

Resolution R21-43 

 

A resolution adopting the 2022 Holiday schedule. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to award the contract 

for removal of a fallen trees at 400 Gauraud and 300 S. East Street to Tony Landry for $1,500 and 

$3,200, respectively.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to approve the 

quote from BihmCo, since the lower bid is ope-ended, for clean out of the wet well for the Main 

Sewer Lift Station and to pay the project from American Rescue Plan Act funds.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Plaisance/T. Broussard 

Resolution R21-44 

 

A resolution authorizing Sellers and Associates, Inc. to prepare and the Mayor to sign any and all 

documents related to the Love Louisiana Outdoors Program and to commit local funds for 

engineering and grant administration fees.   

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/White 

Resolution R21-45 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement with the 

Vermilion Parish Police Jury for the resurfacing of the parking lot at Chris Crusta Memorial Airport 

whereby the City will commit $10,000 from Airport funds for the asphalt and the Vermilion Parish 

Police Jury will commit to the labor and balance of asphalt if more is needed. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

8



3 
 

Mr. Homer Stelly stated the current National Armory was built in 1949 and it was built on property 

that belongs to the City of Abbeville.  Once they vacate that building, it will revert back to the City.  

They decided that they need a new build a new building and it will be 47,000 square feet.  We will 

build it on the circle by the airport.  They will receive federal funds to build it and it should be 

completed by 2024.  The building can be used for different functions.  It will be a state-of-the-art 

building.  Mayor Piazza stated that the National Guard approached him three or four years ago.  

They currently have a 99-year lease with the City and they are in year 72 of that lease.  They want 

to upgrade their armory.  They need a minimum of 10 acres of land.  They really want to be by 

the airport and they plan on utilizing the helipad and the helipad facility as part of their operation.  

Their intention is to build a brand new $22 million National Guard armory.  They are consolidating 

a couple of other older armories in the area into one armory to be located in Abbeville.  They do 

not have to build this armory in Abbeville.  It is because of General Bob LeBlanc and a lot of input 

from Commander Scott Desormeaux that this armory will stay in Vermilion Parish.  They looked 

at several parcels of land throughout the parish.  They were originally interested in school board 

property but a lot is not located on major highways except the property next to Kaplan High 

School.  That property is in a flood zone.  What they do in other parishes is that they reach out to 

local governments first.  Mr. Homer Stelly stated that the federal government cannot purchase 

land.  They usually look for someone to donate the land.  It they build something on your property, 

then they will give it back to you.  

 

Touchet/White 

Resolution R21-46 

 

A resolution committing to establish a long-term lease for 10 or more acres of land located 

adjacent to the Chris Crusta Memorial Airport with the Louisiana National Guard 256 Infantry for 

the location of the new armory. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Touchet stated he would like Mr. Richard Primeaux to research the south side of 

Comeaux Park to see how feasible it would be to locate camper spots that would have electricity, 

water and sewerage.  Additionally, he would like to see how many spots they could put in.  We 

could keep the costs down by utilizing City forces for the labor.  He would like the research to be 

conducted and then reported back to the Council. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to authorize 

Primeaux, Touchet and Associates to conduct research on the feasibility of placing camper spots 

on the south side of Comeaux Park that would have electricity, water and sewer services.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

the quote from Turf Grass Farms for sod for Sellers Field in the amount of $6,480 whereby $3,240 

will be paid from Councilman Touchet’s capital outlay funds and $3,240 will be paid from 

Councilman Broussard’s capital outlay funds.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

payment of pay application number 1 in the amount of $1,377,975.00 payable to GeoSurfaces, 

Inc. for the Comeaux Park Renovation project.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Touchet discussed the possible approval of restroom trailers.  He stated this was 

approved at the last meeting and that different trailer restrooms would be utilized within the City 

9



4 
 

at different spots.  They had received several different quotes.  He asked Tommy to make a 

recommendation.  We want to worry about what the cost is and all that is happening in the 

pandemic and the supply chain shortage.  We can’t get this in two years from now.  We need 

them sooner so we need to order those.  Whatever decision we make, we need to order those 

tomorrow morning.  Tommy stated that all Council members had been given the three choices.  

One of the quotes promised delivery by early spring.  The other quote promises delivery by June.  

They are about the same price.  The Mayor asked him to get a local bid for construction of the 

restrooms.  The restroom trailer bids are about $270,000 but the one constructed locally would 

be $320,000.  That is a container building.  They are looking at a six restroom trailer.  The price is 

$83,000 each.  Councilman Touchet asked the Mayor if he thinks they should order two or three.  

Mayor Piazza stated that he will explain this one time.  He really shouldn’t have to explain it but 

he will explain it one time.  We got quotes on these manufactured restroom trailers.  Tommy said 

that he thought that maybe we could get them built cheaper.  He got quotes and those quotes 

were not cheaper.  They were higher.  The Council authorized him (the Mayor) to go out for bids 

at the last City Council meeting.  Why did we go out for bids?  Councilman Touchet stated to get 

the cheapest one?  Mayor Piazza stated no.  We went out for bids because they are manufactured 

restroom facilities.  It is like buying a car.  We are required to publicly bid the item.  It is not a 

public works project.  You are purchasing an item, like a car or a tractor or anything else.  If it is 

over $30,000 you have to go out for public bid.  That is what we did two weeks ago.  So, what we 

are discussing here tonight, he really doesn’t know.  Tommy stated that he contacted Event 

Solutions and the price to rent one is $9,000 per month.  So go ahead and get your bids and we 

can still get a rented facility in the meantime.  Maybe we can negotiate so we can get it for the 

whole summer.  Councilman Touchet asked if they need to do anything tonight.  Mayor Piazza 

stated no.  He has already sent those specs to LAMATS the day after the last meeting two weeks 

ago and they are bidding them out.  We have to publicly bid them.  He doesn’t know how to 

explain that any better than that.  LAMATS was going to issue the bid yesterday but he held him 

up because you put it on the agenda for tonight.  He will call him back tomorrow and tell him to 

proceed.  It is not a public works project.  A public works project is when they would build it on 

site from start to finish.  If you will buy a fabricated restroom facility, it is like buying a car, a truck 

or a gradall or something.  You have to bid it.  He asked what the Council what they want him to 

do.  Councilman Broussard stated they should wait and hear from LAMATS.   

 

-10 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to table any 

action regarding the portable restroom trailers and to proceed with using LAMATS for the public 

bid process as approved at the last City Council meeting.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

- The drainage board will meet next Tuesday night and he will request an update on the 

cleaning of the two channels.  Councilwoman White asked him to ask about the tree in 

Devalcourt Coulee too. 

- The MS4 permit has been renewed. 

 

Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

- LMA has a subdivision for City Attorneys.  It is called the Louisiana City Attorneys 

Association.  Today he was appointed as the City representative for the Louisiana City 

Attorneys Association to their executive board.  He would be representing not only the City 

of Abbeville, but every other City in the State of Louisiana in the same type of population.   

- Don’t forget we have an executive session tonight at the end of the meeting. 

 

 

 

10



5 
 

Tommy Picard, Park Director, QSA 

- They are doing the work at the park and they would have been nearly finished if it would 

not have been for the rain.  Sellers Field should be finished by February 1, 2022.   Mayor 

Piazza stated they met with Dominic Listi about when the bleachers come in about the 

slabs and coverings.  He asked Tommy to show Councilman Touchet and Councilman 

Broussard about what they talked about.  He forgot to put the surplus of the bleachers on 

the agenda tonight but in the meantime, we need to have Chris get together with Tommy 

and prepare an inventory of the bleachers.  We need to figure out where they need to go 

and if some will be relocated to other parks.  Also let us know if some of the bleachers will 

be donated to other schools.  Ike stated that we first have to surplus the bleachers that we 

do not want to keep.  We can do an intergovernmental agreement with the school as 

needed.  Tommy thanked Broussard Brothers and Acadiana that helped move the 

bleachers.  It saved us between $7,000 to $10,000.  His two crew members did a great job.  

QSA hired Jesse and he is cleaning up Sellers Field.  We need to get a trailer in there to put 

all the junk in.  You also need a plan for the dirt.  Ike stated that dirt is an asset of the City 

so we have to have it valued and then we can surplus it and we can dispose of it in 

accordance with the value.  Mayor Piazza stated that goes for the lights, the poles and 

any other stuff over there.  That is all City property and cannot be given away.  Even if it is 

another governmental entity, we have to complete an intergovernmental agreement for 

the donation.  Ike stated he needs a copy of any valuation completed on the items. 

 

Councilwoman Roslyn White 

- This Saturday will be a fun filled family day in Abbeville for Christmas.  It will start at 8:30 

AM.  Junior Auxiliary will have their “Here Comes Santa Run”.  It will begin at Magdalen 

Square.   Following that will be Abbeville’s Cajun Christmas Celebration.  We will have 

vendors set up along Concord Street.  Those vendors will open at 4:00 PM.  At 5:30 PM the 

parade will roll.  That should last about one hour.  Following that we will have Storytime 

in the Square with Mayor Mark Piazza.  There will be a band in the Square following story 

time from 7:00 PM to 9:00 PM.  General Bob LeBlanc is the grand marshal of the parade 

and Santa will be arriving by airboat on a trailer.  At the same time, Boys and Girls Club of 

Vermilion Parish is having a “Making Spirits Bright” holiday light trail.    They will decorate 

the circular drive at A. A. Comeaux Park with lights and you can go for $10 per car.  You 

can drive thru with you family and see the Christmas lights.  They will also have a trolley 

that will run between Magdalen Square and A. A. Comeaux Park for those who don’t want 

to go in their car.  That is $5 per adult and $2 per child.  The trolley will make the circle 

around A. A. Comeaux Park and return to the Square.  It is sure to be a fun day for 

everyone.  Mayor Piazza asked about the booths on Concord opening at 4:00 PM and the 

events in the Square.  Councilwoman White stated the events in the Square will be after 

the parade.  Mayor Piazza asked Councilwoman White to get together with the Police 

Chief to discuss the streets that will be blocked and when they will be blocked.  Please take 

into consideration 4:00 PM mass at St. Mary Magdalen Church.  We can’t block that off 

for mass and there is also a wedding that night too.  The reception is at Black’s.  The 

wedding is at 6:00 PM.  Councilwoman White stated she will be meeting with the Police 

Chief tomorrow at 11:00 AM. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- He seconds what Councilwoman White said and he hopes all the Council members and the 

Mayor are participating in that event.  It is a great thing. 

- Commended the Main Street program for a highly successful Christmas Stroll.  It was 

largely attended. 

11



6 
 

- It is so pleasant to see all the progress that our new Public Works Director, Chris 

Gautreaux, is doing.  Keep up the good work all teams of the City.  We are about to enter 

into a new year and thank you for what you do. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to enter into 

executive session to consider an order of administrative leave as issued by Mayor Piazza on 

November 17, 2021.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-12 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to reconvene 

the regular meeting from executive session.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mr. Funderburk reported on the executive session. Mayor reported to the City Council that he had 

placed an employee on administrative leave effective November 17, 2021 and that a hearing will 

be conducted as a public meeting on the 14th of December, 2021 at 2:00 PM in this room. 

 

-13 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to ratify the 

administrative leave with pay as discussed.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

 

12



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

December 21, 2021 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on December 21, 2021 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Brady Broussard, Jr., Francis 

Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn White    

 

Members Absent:  Councilwoman Terry Broussard   

 

Also, Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Lieutenant Jonathan Touchet 

    Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

    Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Gene Sellers, Engineer 

    Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

    Tommy Picard, Park & Recreation Director, QSA  

    Gerald Gaspard, American Legion, Chamber of Commerce 

    Theresa Holmes, Martin Luther King Jr. Day Celebration 

    Donna Libersat, Beanies for St. Jude 

    Joey Boneski  

               

Mayor Piazza asked Mr. Joey Boneski to lead the assembly in prayer.  Mayor Piazza asked Mr. 

Gerald Gaspard to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to accept the 

resignation of John Castille from the Abbeville Police Department effective December 14, 2021.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

Ms. Theresa Holmes was present to discuss the upcoming Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Celebration.  

She is the Co-chairperson for the MLK Celebration Federation.  They are planning to continue the 

motorcade as they did last year.  It will be held on Monday, January 17, 2022.  They will start off 

with a one evening revival at Ark of the Covenant on Thursday, January 13, 2022.  On Saturday, 

January 15, 2022 they will have a prayer breakfast at Ark of the Covenant church at 9:00 AM.  

Then they will do a sit-in at a local church.  This year it will be at Lighthouse for Jesus at noon.  We 

will have a stump service on Monday, January 17, 2022 on the corner of I. J. Joiner and Green 

Street at 9:30 AM.  From there we will have the motorcade on the route as outlined by the Police 

Department.  After that they will go to McKinley Scott Park for the celebration.  We will keep it 

very small because of COVID.  Mayor Piazza stated they are not required to have a special event 

permit because it is a reoccurring event.  We give book scholarships with any donations they 

receive for the event and also pay for application fees for students applying to local schools.   

 

13



2 
 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to approve the 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Celebration as discussed.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to enter into a 

public hearing to receive comments from the public regarding the proposed 2022 budget and the 

amended 2021 budget.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public regarding the proposed 2022 

budget or the amended 2021 budget.  There were none. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to close the public 

hearing and reconvene the regular meeting.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Plaisance/White 

Ordinance 21-09 

 

An ordinance adopting the 2022 Budget and the amended 2021 budget. 

 

The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  4(Plaisance, B. Broussard, Touchet, White) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 1(T. Broussard) 

 ABSTAIN: 0 

Therefore, the ordinance was adopted. 

 

Plaisance/White 

Resolution R21-47 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a cooperative endeavor agreement with Vermilion 

Catholic High School to loan two glass backboards with rims to the school. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/White 

Resolution R21-48 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement with the City of 

Crowley for the purchase of a used Printronix printer in the amount of $1,500 to be utilized in the 

Utility Collection Department at City Hall. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

payment of the invoice from Delta Fire & Safety in the amount of $9,553.80 for repairs to the Fire 

Department Aerial Truck.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to surplus up to 

182 broken and/or obsolete lights that were taken down at A. A. Comeaux Park.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

14



3 
 

-07 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to surplus 

various sets of bleachers that were at A. A. Comeaux Park and to cut those up and send to scrap 

iron salvage.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Touchet/White 

Resolution R21-49 

 

A resolution authorizing the surplus of various bleachers from A. A. Comeaux Park and to also 

authorize the Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement with the Vermilion Parish 

School Board to donate said bleachers to J. H. Williams Middle School and Erath High School.   

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve the 

purchase of body cameras from Stalker Radar Applied Concepts, Inc. in the amount of $7,885.00 

for the Police Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to approve 

payment of the invoice in the amount of $12,266.80 payable to Glenn Lege Construction, LLC for 

the cleaning of the concrete lined coulee project.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Plaisance/Touchet 

Resolution R21-50 

 

A resolution authorizing the City of Abbeville to join with the State of Louisiana, et al, as a 

participant in opioid litigation and to authorize the Mayor to execute all documents.   

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Plaisance/White 

Amended Resolution R21-43 

 

A resolution to amend the original 2022 Holiday schedule resolution adopted at the December 7, 

2021 meeting because there was an error with one of the dates. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Gene Sellers, Engineer 

- The contractor began the walking trail at LaFitte Park. 

 

Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

- Most of the work that was to be done by the drainage board on the two channels has been 

completed. 

- Met with Tommy Picard regarding the research of the feasibility of RV spots at Comeaux 

Park. 

 

Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

- He discussed the statistics of the calls received for 2021.  They had 8,958 calls so far this 

year.  That will definitely go over 9,000 calls by the end of the year. 

 

 

15



4 
 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

- Discussed the calls in the last 30 days.  They ran 156 calls.  Jared Ruffin has completed 

school.  There was a split on the water tank truck on Joffre.  That is being repaired.  The 

Lucas machine that was purchased has been used 50 times. 

 

Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

- Presented the social media year in review for 2021.   

- Will be working with the Nehemiah Group for the Black History month campaign. 

 

Councilwoman Roslyn White 

- Wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.  She hopes everyone has a 

blessed holiday. 

- Thanked everybody who showed up and participated in the Christmas event that we had 

since our last City Council meeting.  She gave props and appreciation for the City team, 

the City Police Force and the Fire Department.  She received nothing but high compliments 

on all of your services that you provided.  We put Chris through the wringer and he worked 

hard to make things happen.  The general public commented on how well the City team 

performed. 

- She did get a lot of people thanking us for starting up the social media page.  They really 

appreciate the increased communication from City Hall.  Allie, good job, keep it up.  She 

would like to see us channel all of our posts through the City page so that people will get 

updates all in one place.  We will work on that for 2022. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- We are at the time of the year of political candidates and elections.  It is a good time to 

remind the public that signs on public property are prohibited.  Signs are for private 

property and hopefully we can come up with the best approach to call the candidate to 

remove it from City property or to have our employees pick them up and bring them here 

and then we can call the candidate.  Councilman Touchet stated that it needs to be defined 

that the public right of way is from the telephone post back to the road.  Anything that is 

in that area is preventing our workers from cleaning things that are our responsibility.  His 

suggestion is that we need to make sure our Public Works Director communicates to our 

City workers who are picking up litter and cutting grass about this.  We need to call the 

candidate and if they do not move the sign, then the sign will be picked up.  We need a 

system in place that after a grace period of people knowing that their sign is not properly 

placed that they will be removed.  Chris Gautreaux asked if Allie could put that on social 

media. 

- This is the time of the year to think of our fellow man and our fellow woman.  It is the time 

to think about the most vulnerable who are our children.  There is a great thing happening 

in our City and he invites everyone to join him, January 29, 2022, Beanies for St. Jude at 

Magdalen Place.  This is putting money where it needs to go to save children’s lives.  We 

have some warriors in our City who devote activities to support St. Jude and save children’s 

lives.  He recognized Donna Libersat tonight who will be at that event.  If we don’t do 

things to save children, our roads and sidewalks don’t matter as much.  You can contact 

Donna for tickets and it is also on our Facebook page.  Mayor Piazza asked Allie to put the 

information on our page too. 

- Wished everyone Merry Christmas and health and happiness to all the citizens of Abbeville 

who deserve nothing less. 

 

 

 

16



5 
 

Councilman Francis Plaisance 

- Wished everyone Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.  He would like everyone to all be 

in prayer for those who have lost loved ones this year.  There are a lot of families who are 

grieving this Christmas. 

- Was surprised this morning when he saw that the contractor had begun the walking trail 

at LaFitte Park.  They were not supposed to start until January 17, 2022. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

17



18



19



JOB NO.:  8844-43 PAGE 1 OF 2

PROJECT:

OWNER:

CONTRACTOR:

NOTICE TO PROCEED DATE: 09/18/21 to 10/13/21

CONTRACT TIME: 106                            100 % TIME USED: 94.34%

CONTRACT PRICE: 125,823.35$           % COMPLETE: 100.00%

Item
No. Quantity Unit Price Current Previous Total

1. 5,560.00  Sq. Yd. 1.50              0.00 5,560.00 5,560.00

2. 120.00      Ton 130.00         0.00 55.13 55.13

3. 525.00      Ton 97.00           0.00 574.35 574.35

4. 0.41           Mile 23,200.00   0.00 0.41 0.41

5. 75.00        Ton 93.50           0.00 0.00 0.00

6. 2.00           Each 185.00         0.00 3.00 3.00

7. 1.00           Each 150.00         0.00 0.00 0.00

8. 115.00      Ln. Ft. 85.00           0.00 115.00 115.00

9. 110.00      Ln. Ft. 92.00           0.00 110.00 110.00

10. 90.00        Ln. Ft. 67.00           0.00 90.00 90.00

11. 2.00           Each 89.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

12. 2.00           Each 89.00           0.00 2.00 2.00

13. 2.00           Each 89.00           0.00 0.00 0.00

14. 2.00           Each 67.50           0.00 2.00 2.00

1-A 1.00           L. S. 4,880.00     0.00 1.00 1.00

E1. 119.00      Inch 8.00              0.00 119.00 119.00

E2. 20.00        Sq. Yd. 10.00           0.00 20.00 20.00

E3. 1.00           L. S. 2,500.00     0.00 1.00 1.00

1. 625.00      Sq. Yd. 1.50              0.00 625.00 625.00

2. 25.00        Ton 130.00         0.00 10.00 10.00

3. 50.00        Ton 97.00           0.00 50.00 50.00

ESTIMATE FOR PARTIAL PAYMENT NO. 3 (Final)

North and South Hollingsworth Drive and Cypress Street Milling and Overlay

City of Abbeville

Glenn Lege Construction, LLC, 1339 Fortune Road, Youngsville, LA 70592

July 5, 2021 PAYMENT PERIOD:

Description Amount

Base Bid

Asphalt Milling, 8,340.00

CALENDAR DAYS                 DAYS USED:

TOTAL THIS PERIOD: 125,823.35$               

CONTRACT QUANTITY

#610 Limestone, 0.00

Adjust Manhole, 555.00

Adjust Water Valve, 0.00

Level and Patch Asphalt, 7,166.90

Asphalt Overlay, 55,711.95

Surface Preparation, 9,512.00

Furnish and Install Object 

Markers for Obstructions within 

Roadway with Tee Post: Type 

OM3-C, 0.00

Furnish and Install Object 

Markers for Obstructions within 

Roadway with Tee Post: Type 

OM3-L, 178.00

Furnish and Install Object 

Markers for Obstructions within 

Roadway with Tee Post: Type 

OM3-R, 0.00

Cut Swale Section Ditch, 9,775.00

Furnish and Install 10-Inch PVC 

Schedule 80 Pipe, 10,120.00

Furnish and Install 12-Inch 

Concrete Curb, 6,030.00

Furnish and Install Object 

Markers for Obstructions within 

Roadway with Tee Post: Type 

OM2-1V, 135.00

Add Dress Up Shoulders with 

Borrow Material 4,880.00

Alternate No. 1

Saw Cut Concrete Drive

Remove Concrete Rip Rap

Patching and Sealing Bridge at 

North Hollingsworth Drive

952.00

200.00

2,500.00

Asphalt Milling, 937.50

Level and Patch Asphalt, 1,300.00

Asphalt Overlay, 4,850.00

N:\DATA\8844\8844-43\Construction\8844-43 PPE#3 (Final)
20



JOB NO.:  8844-43 PAGE 2 OF 2

PROJECT:

OWNER:

CONTRACTOR:

NOTICE TO PROCEED DATE: 09/18/21 to 10/13/21

CONTRACT TIME: 106                            100 % TIME USED: 94.34%

CONTRACT PRICE: 125,823.35$           % COMPLETE: 100.00%

Item
No. Quantity Unit Price Current Previous Total

ESTIMATE FOR PARTIAL PAYMENT NO. 3 (Final)

North and South Hollingsworth Drive and Cypress Street Milling and Overlay

City of Abbeville

Glenn Lege Construction, LLC, 1339 Fortune Road, Youngsville, LA 70592

July 5, 2021 PAYMENT PERIOD:

Description Amount

Base Bid

CALENDAR DAYS                 DAYS USED:

TOTAL THIS PERIOD: 125,823.35$               

CONTRACT QUANTITY

4. 0.05           Mile 23,200.00   0.00 0.05 0.05

5. 25.00        Ton 93.50           0.00 0.00 0.00

1-A 1.00           L. S. 1,520.00     0.00 1.00 1.00

BY:    BY:

DATE:    DATE:

   BY:

   DATE:

Surface Preparation, 1,160.00

#610 Limestone, 0.00
Add Dress Up Shoulders with 

Borrow Material 1,520.00

   TOTAL VALUE OF COMPLETED WORK 125,823.35$            

   LESS 10% RETAINED -$                            

ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE: 131,038.50$                TOTAL OF ABOVE ITEMS 125,823.35$            

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 (5,140.15)$                   OTHER (MATERIAL ON HAND) -$                            

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 (75.00)$                       

GLENN LEGE CONSTRUCTION, LLC    SELLERS & ASSOCIATES, INC.

CONTRACTOR    LAFAYETTE - ABBEVILLE, LOUISIANA

   CITY OF ABBEVILLE

   OWNER

ADJUSTED CONTRACT PRICE: 125,823.35$                AMOUNT DUE THIS ESTIMATE 12,582.34$               

CERTIFIED CORRECT:    RECOMMENDED FOR PAYMENT:

   NET AMOUNT DUE TO DATE 125,823.35$            

   LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENTS 113,241.01$            

N:\DATA\8844\8844-43\Construction\8844-43 PPE#3 (Final)
21



CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 2

JOB NO.: 8844-43 DATE: December 28, 2021

PROJECT: North and South Hollingsworth Drive and Cypress Street Milling and Overlay

OWNER: City of Abbeville

CONTRACTOR: Glenn Lege Constructions, LLC, 1339 Fortune Road, Youngsville, LA 70592

You are hereby requested to comply with the following change from the original contract plans and specifications:

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE DECREASE INCREASE

A. Adjust the unit price of Alternate No. 1, Item
2. Level and Patch Asphalt, per sq. yd., from
$125.00 to reflect the correct unit price from
the bid tabulation of $130.00: -15.00 $ 5.00 $ -75.00

SUB-TOTAL $ -75.00 $ 0.00

TOTAL DECREASE $ -75.00

The difference of $75.00 is hereby deducted from the total contract price and the adjusted contract price to date therefore is $125,823.35.

The contract time will remain unchanged.

RECOMMENDED: DATE:

SELLERS & ASSOCIATES, INC., ENGINEERS

ACCEPTED: DATE:

GLENN LEGE CONSTRUCTION, LLC, CONTRACTOR

APPROVED: DATE:

CITY OF ABBEVILLE, OWNER

22



23



24



25



26



 

PO Box 9060 New Iberia, LA 70562-9060  ~  preferredelectric.net  ~    P. (337) 365-5516   F. (337) 367-2480 

 

December 28, 2021 
 

Stewart Head 

 City of Abbeville 

 717 Veteran’s Memorial 
Abbeville, La. 70510  

Cell: 337-319-1650 

Re: Bores at AA Comeaux Park 

Preferred electric is pleased to receive this opportunity which may allow our company to provide our services to your 

organization. Please see below price to bore at Ralph Sellers and Roy Theriot Field. 

Bore for Roy Theriot field will consist of bore and Conduit. 

   250’ - Bore and Labor will be: $3,125.00 
              Conduit Price will be:    $625.00  
 
    Total for bore and conduit is $3,750.00 
 
Bore for Ralphs Sellers field will consist of bore and conduit. 
 
650’ – Bore and labor will be: $8,125.00 
            Conduit Price will be:    $1,625.00 
 
   Total for bore and conduit is: $9,750.00 
 

   Total price for both bores is: $13,500.00                              

 

 If we can be of any further assistance, please contact Chris Hebert at 337-365-5516 

 

Sincerely, 

Preferred Electric, Inc. 

 

Chris Hebert  
Business Development  

27


	Top
	1.	Minutes
	12-07-21 personnel interviews
	December 7, 2021 Committee meeting
	December 7, 2021 regular meeting
	December 21, 2021 regular meeting

	1.	Ratify radio purchase APD
	2.	poles for stock
	Techline quote for poles

	3.	Lafitte walking trail payment
	4.	Lafitte park walking trail change order
	9018-01 CCO#1 Partial Execution

	5.	Hollingsworth drive payment
	8844-43 PPE#3 (Final)

	6.	Hollingsworth Change order
	8844-43 CCO#2

	7.	Special event-Vermilion Walk for Life
	8.	Lease backhoe
	Backhoe lease

	9.	Bores-Comeaux Park
	City of Abbeville bores at AA comeaux Park 12-28-2021

	10.	LCDBG advertisement
	1.	No old business
	Bottom

